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The following table outlines Respondent questions, references Invitation to Negotiate (ITN) components and sections, and the SIPA response to questions.
1. Addendum 1: included responses to Questions 1-3, 5
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4. Addendum 4: includes responses to Questions 23-63
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	#
	Document/ Exhibit
	Section #/ Paragraph #
	Question
	SIPA Response

	1
	ITN Solicitation Document
	1.3 Business Objectives
	How does this solicitation relate to a recently awarded OIT RFP, #2022000154, for Digital Government Strategic Planning Services?
	This solicitation is unrelated to the recently awarded OIT RFP #2022000154 for Digital Government Strategic Planning Services.

	2
	N/A
	N/A
	When will answers to the questions be posted?
	The SIPA team will meet regularly during the Q&A period and will publish responses to the SIPA website as soon as possible. Therefore, continue to check the website regularly.

	3
	N/A
	N/A
	Will we have access to the slide deck after the meeting?
	The pre-proposal presentation deck has been posted as part of Addendum 1.

	5
	N/A
	N/A
	Is there a description of how the evaluation will score responses somewhere in the ITN? That is, how will evaluators determine a point value for responses.
	The evaluation process is detailed in Article 4 of the ITN; SIPA will not publish the evaluation criteria weights. However, the categories for the criteria are provided in the ITN.

	4
	N/A

	N/A
	Would SIPA accept a response to the payments services scope of work only as part of this ITN?
	Many of the organizations that provided feedback to the RFI published last summer indicated that they would submit a proposal for one, or two of the services that were described in the RFI . SIPA has a strong preference for awarding a single contract to one or a group of Offerors, with one serving as the prime, to provide all of the services outlined in the ITN. Pursuant to Sections 3.4 and 3.5 of the ITN, Responses must be inclusive of Portal and Payment Services. SIPA retains the right to award a portion of the ITN based on best value determination.

	6
	ITN Solicitation Document
	1.3
	Who is the current incumbent organization?
	SIPA is not releasing the name of the incumbent.

	7
	ITN Solicitation Document
	N/A
	Will you provide us the name of the organization or persons who proposed questions during the Pre-proposal conference?
	SIPA will not disclose the names or entities who propose questions during this ITN Q&A process.

	8
	ITN Solicitation Document
	N/A
	What is the current budget for this solicitation?
	Offeror shall develop pricing based on the requirements set forth in the ITN

	9
	Other (Not one of the above)
	2.1 Required Services
	If we provide one of the four solutions needed (payment services), should we submit a bid?
	See response to Question #4.

	10
	Other (Not one of the above)
	N/A
	Would SIPA be willing to extend the due date for proposals by two weeks?
	At this time, SIPA is not considering extending the deadline for submitting responses.

	11
	Exhibit 2.1.5 Payment Services Solution
	N/A
	Is the following data available in the data room (or can it be made available)? Current Payment Method Mix (Cards, ACH, etc.): # of Transactions and overall volume ($) by channel
	The volumes currently available are included in the Annual Report in the data room. Additional detail such as breakdown between bank cards and ACH, payment channel, etc., may be available at a future date.

	12
	Exhibit 2.4 Key Personnel
	Section 8
	When it comes to the broader Service Provider team (beyond just the Key Personnel outlined in Section 8), are there restrictions on the geographic locations of Service Provider personnel? If so, what are the key drivers behind those restrictions?
	Offerors should submit proposals with the assumption that all services are provided within the United States. SIPA believes there to be operational efficiencies for certain roles to reside in the State of Colorado within the Service Provider team that will interface with SIPA and SIPA Customers.

	13
	Exhibit 2.1.3 Payment Services SOW
	Exhibit 2.1.2, Section 2.5.1.7
	Current POS devices / payment terminals: Approximately, how many are in use and where? Which types / brands / models? Where are they in the depreciation lifecycle? What is the current extent of integration into backend solutions (e.g. sample use cases supported)?
	There are approximately 1,600 POS devices at various locations around the state. A significant portion of these devices are at DMV offices. Most of the terminals are FD40; however, there are still some Magtek devices in the environment. The POS devices operate with a direct connection into the payment gateway to minimize PCI risk. It is expected that all POS devices would be replaced if a new payment gateway is used due to the age of the devices and the cost-effectiveness of changing injected security codes.

	14
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Digital Government SOW
	Sections 2.2-3.2 (Infrastructure focus)
	Please describe the current-state high level architecture supporting marketing automation and activities. Specifically, what components exist today? (Sources, Integration, Data Stores, Planning, Activation, Reporting, Channels/Experience)? Are there other related systems projects or assessments in-flight that would impact the current architecture?
	Please resubmit in the form of a question with reference to the specific ITN document and/or requirements.

	15
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Digital Government SOW
	Sections 2.2-2.3 (Data focus)
	What data sources currently feed into the ecosystem (e.g. eCommerce, 3rd party data, POS, Social, etc.)? How accessible is the data to end users? What is the frequency of updates / loads depending on type of data?
	Please resubmit your question, defining what you consider to be an ecosystem based on the requirements of the ITN.  Additionally, please clarify "accessibility".

	16
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Digital Government SOW
	Sections 2.2-3.2 (Integration focus)
	What ETL or API integration layers are present in the ecosystem today? Are they batch or real-time, and how is messaging performed? Who supports the integration layers? Are there any existing pain points or issues related to integrations that we should look to address moving forward?
	Please resubmit your question, defining what you consider to be an ecosystem based on the requirements of the ITN.

	17
	Other (Not one of the above)
	General
	With information still forthcoming for the ITN and questions not due until May 6, would SIPA consider an extension of the due date from May 20 to June 17 to allow respondents ample time to respond fully to SIPA's needs?
	At this time, SIPA is not considering extending the deadline for submitting responses.

	18
	ITN Solicitation Document
	3.5.3.3 - Q2
	Please provide more detail on the "internally prepared" financial statements SIPA expects to see.
	The internally prepared financial statements referred to in the ITN Solicitation, Section 3.5.3.3.2, should be in a similar format to the financial statements required in Section 3.5.3.3.1. The difference is the statements are not required to be audited or reviewed by an external attestation party. In addition, the statements do not need to have all GAAP required closing entries.

	19
	ITN Solicitation Document
	4.1
	Please provide detail on how SIPA will determine the financial solvency of a bidder. What, if any, formulas will be used to determine whether a bidder passes or fails the financial review? What does a passing bidder look like?
	The evaluation process is detailed in Article 4 of the ITN; SIPA will not publish additional details as to our evaluation process.

	20
	Master Services Agreement
	6.4 (a)
	In this clause, Exhibit 4.2 is referenced as "Financial Responsibility Matrix" and suggests that the financial responsibilities of both parties are outlined in this exhibit. However, Exhibit 4.2 is titled "Financial Reporting" and only provides a list of required reports the successful bidder will provide to SIPA following commencement. Please clarify where bidders can find the "Financial Responsibility Matrix."
	This reference to Exhibit 4.2 Financial Responsibility Matrix in Sections 5.2, 6.4, 9.6, 11.5, and 12.3 of the MSA has been revised to Exhibit 4.0 Business Model in version 1.1 of the MSA released with Addendum 3.

	21
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Digital Government SOW
	2.2.1.3
	In this section, SIPA references that a "gateway" be provided to merchant processors. Is it the intent of the Authority to allow for more than one merchant processor be available to its customers? Is it the expectation that agencies may choose their own processor other than the processor contracted through this ITN process?
	Per Exhibit 2.1.2 - Payment Services Statement of Work, Section 2.5.1.1, the Service Provider must be the merchant of record. The Service Provider is expected to provide payment services using the payment facilitator model. Therefore, the only payment gateway/merchant processor will be the one contracted through this ITN process.

	22
	Other (Not one of the above)
	N/A
	In the Portal Integrator Question Submission Form, Section 2.1.2 is listed as "Digital Government Services" but in the ITN issued to bidders, "Digital Government Services" is missing and 2.1.2 is titled "Payment Services Scope of Work."

Would you please help us understand this discrepancy? Is "Digital Government Services" missing from the ITN, or was the ITN changed after the question submission form site was created? How would you like us to submit questions considering the discrepancy?
	This is an error on the Google Form that was corrected on 4/28/22.  The Google Form now aligns with the ITN that was released on 4/8/22.

	23
	ITN Solicitation Document
	Key Personnel
	Can designated Key Personnel perform more than one role, as long as they are 100% dedicated to SIPA?
	Exhibit 2.4 - Key Personnel, Section 1 lists the required Key Personnel. All of the personnel are required to be "dedicated full time to the SIPA account and shall not be leveraged to other accounts". The intent is for the Offeror to have different individuals for each role, (i.e., seven FTEs). The Offeror may have one individual fill more than one role as long as the response clearly documents how the solution and performance (SLAs) requirements will be met based on the proposed Key Personnel and supporting staff

	24
	ITN Solicitation Document
	Background and Objectives
	Are the current websites in scope hosted externally via a hosting vendor or via your data center(s) or via a private NIC data center(s)?
	The current websites are hosted in the Acquia CMS Drupal environment.

	25
	ITN Solicitation Document
	Objectives
	Is the hosting infrastructure and vendor going to change as part of this exercise? If so, could we have access to the current hosting infrastructure environment details (including any DR/failover solutions in place)?
	As noted in Question #24, Websites are hosted in the Acquia CMS platform.  Standard Applications are hosted with the Incumbent.  Custom Applications are hosted in a Colorado Flexential data center with one application hosted in the state's Google Could Platform.

	26
	ITN Solicitation Document
	Objectives
	Is the new hosting vendor/platform determined or will that be determined later? Who will manage the migration of currently hosted site & content to the new hosting vendor/platform (i.e. SIPA / NIC / Vendor)?
	The Offeror will determine the target platform and will manage and execute the migration to the target platform(s).

	27
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	2.6
	Section 2.6 of the Payment Services SOW describes Subscriber Services, which includes a rolling payment of $6.5 to $10 million monthly during the invoice collection process. Does SIPA want for Service Provider compensation for these efforts to be blended into the ACH Fixed Unit Rate Per Transaction and the Bankcard Fixed Unit Rate Per Transaction, or will SIPA add a new line item to Exhibit 4.1, Payment Service Charges, for this effort?
	The Offeror should include the cost to meet this requirement by including blending the cost into the ACH Fixed Unit Rate Per Transaction and Bankcard Fixed Unit Rate Per Transaction. In addition, the Offeror should include the amount to support this requirement in the Assumptions tab of Exhibit 4.1.

	28
	ITN Solicitation Document
	Section 3.5.3.3.b
	ITN section 3.5.3.3.b says submit the Offeror Information as a .pdf format, but the table in section 3.5.4.1 says .docx for the file format. Given this includes a signed document, please confirm that a PDF file format is acceptable.
	The table in Section 3.5.4.1 has been modified to allow for .pdf format an acceptable format for this Offeror Information response attachment. ITN Document has been revised to reflect this change in version 1.1 and released with Addendum 4.

	29
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	Section 2.1.2.6
	Can SIPA define what are non-subject Customers as used in RFP Section 2.1.2.6 of Exhibit 2.1.2?
	The intent of this section is to affirm that the Service Provider may not commingle any funds not related to this Solicitation in the Portal Clearing Account.

	30
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	Section 2.1 and 2.2
	How many locations will we be supporting for payment processing?
	See response to Question #13. Additional data will be provided in the Data Room when made available to SIPA.

	31
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	Section 2.1 and 2.2
	How many entities (SIPA, Customers) other than Residents are using the payment services today?
	See response to Question #11. Additional data will be provided in the Data Room when made available to SIPA.

	32
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	Section 2.2.1.5
	How many payment devices are in use and at what locations today? and will you provide an inventory?
	See response to Question #13. Additional data will be provided in the Data Room when made available to SIPA.

	33
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	Section 2.2.1.5
	Average ticket transaction?
	See response to Question #11.

	34
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	Section 2.2.1.4 and 2.2.1.5
	Percentage of Online transactions vs. physical card
	See response to Question #11.

	35
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	Section 2.2.1.4 and 2.2.1.5
	What is the length of a contract?
	The term of this contract is set forth in Section 2.4 of the ITN.

	36
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	Section 2.5
	What are the current POS and ecom software being used?
	The POS and ecom software being used is assumed to be propriety to the Incumbent. Offeror solution and pricing shall include replacing POS devices and payment gateway as part of Transition Services. Exhibit 4.1 Pricing Structure shall exclude the costs to replace the POS device.

	37
	Exhibit 2.1.3 Portal Services SOW
	Section 5.2
	Who is performing this service desk function today for SIPA?
	Service Desk is provided by the incumbent and shall be replaced by the Successful Offeror pursuant to the requirements set forth in this ITN.

	38
	Exhibit 2.1.3 Portal Services SOW
	Section 5.2
	Are the service desk personnel in a physical call center or remote workers?
	See response to Question #37.

	39
	Exhibit 2.1.3 Portal Services SOW
	Section 5.2
	What Service Desk software is in use today? Is the intent to replace or retain it?
	See response to Question #37.

	40
	Exhibit 2.1.3 Portal Services SOW
	Section 5.2
	What CHAT software is being used today? Is the intent to replace this or retain it?
	See response to Question #37.

	41
	Exhibit 2.1.3 Portal Services SOW
	Section 5.2
	How many live agents are in use by the provider today
	See response to Question #37.

	42
	Exhibit 2.1.3 Portal Services SOW
	Section 5.2
	Please provide a breakdown of Service Desk contacts? (we have totals by email, hone and chat from the data room but need more information)
    -Contacts by entity (SIPA, Customer, Resident)
    -Kinds of contacts by the entities of SIPA, Customer, Resident, such as password reset, software issue, how to question and so on for the types of contacts that make up most of the contact volumes.
   -Call breakdown by Type – Tier 1, Tier 2, Tier 3
	The Service Desk contact volume information currently published in the data room GM Reports is the extent of the information we have.  Offeror should document any assumptions used for purposes of solutioning in the appropriate tab in Attachment 4.1 Pricing Structure.

	43
	Exhibit 2.1.3 Portal Services SOW
	Section 5.2
	Is there a knowledge base in use today? If so, what is the software?
	See response to Question #37.

	44
	Exhibit 2.1.3 Portal Services SOW
	Section 5.2
	Will the knowledge base transfer to the new provider?
	See response to Question #37.

	45
	Exhibit 2.1.3 Portal Services SOW
	Section 1
	Describe your existing solution with architecture and component diagram?
	The current solution components consist of Content Management Systems (CMS) which host static websites, Standard Applications which host forms-driven sites, and Custom Applications. An Application Workbook listing each of the applications by type will be provided.

	46
	ITN Solicitation Document
	Objectives
	Is there is a way SIPA can categorize sites based on complexity (number of templates, modules, integrations, page counts, user volumes, etc.)
	SIPA has uploaded the Application Workbook in the Data Room Common Files to assist Offerors in determining the appropriate categorization of complexity for their respective solution. Offeror should document any assumptions used for purposes of solutioning in the appropriate tab in Attachment 4.1 Pricing Structure.

	47
	ITN Solicitation Document
	Objectives
	What is your desired level of NFRs - nonfunctional requirements (availability, performance, accessibility, etc.)
	Offeror shall solution to the requirements as set forth in the ITN documents.

	48
	ITN Solicitation Document
	Objectives
	Can you please quantify the amount of site updates (experience/design changes, content updates, bug fixes, new design/development, etc.) that you anticipate in a month/quarter/year?
	Refer to the monthly GM Reports in the data room for monthly and year to date active and completed projects for historical demand.

	49
	ITN Solicitation Document
	Objectives
	What type of SLA is expected for the managed services (tier 1/2/3) and for content production in terms of response time, after hours support and given that off shoring is not allowed - what level of 24/7 support is needed?
	The Service Levels are described within Exhibit 3.1 and further defined in Exhibit 3.2.

	50
	Other (Not one of the above)
	CMS
	What tools does your organization use to optimize the search engine, and what taxonomies do you have to help authors create relevant content?
	The current website CMS provides a framework for the EGE content owners to enter and maintain their website content.

	51
	Other (Not one of the above)
	CMS
	What are your established governance structures and policies for authoring content?
	See response to Question #50.

	52
	Other (Not one of the above)
	CMS
	Are content assets being enriched with meta-data attributes?
	See response to Question #50.

	53
	Master Services Agreement (MSA) with Exhibits
	Section 1(b) - Deposit Materials
	Master Services Agreement (MSA) with Exhibits
	Please review the remainder of this MSA Attachment C Form of Source Code Escrow for accompanying details and definitions including 1 (e) Source Code. Please also reference requirements and definitions set forth in MSA Section 12.3 Service Provider Owned Materials, Exhibit 1.1 Software and Third Party Materials.

	54
	Master Services Agreement (MSA) with Exhibits
	Section 4 – Services
	What is SIPA's policy re: Open Source Software and other materials (e.g., encourage, prohibit, neutral)? If encouraged or neutral, is the lack of available source code escrow acceptable?
	SIPA is neutral to the use of Open Source Software.  Offeror shall solution based on the requirements including performance and security as set forth in the ITN and Colorado Information Security Policies and capture related assumptions in the appropriate tab in Exhibit 4.1 Pricing Structure. With respect to the source code escrow question, see Question #53.

	55
	Master Services Agreement (MSA) with Exhibits
	Article 11

	Will the solution need to process Protected Health Information (PHI)?
	The current Application Workbook has no instances where PHI is hosted or transacted. However, future solutions for SIPA Customers may include PHI data.

	56
	Master Services Agreement (MSA) with Exhibits
	Exhibits
	Please advise if you want feedback on MSA Exhibits other than those listed in Table 7 on page 24 of the ITN Document. If so, in what format do you want to receive that feedback?
	Table 7 in Section 5.1 of the ITN includes all documents that will be considered as part of SIPA's evaluation. MSA Exhibit exceptions shall be documented as set forth in Section 3.5.3.2.

	57
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	2.1.4.6
	Can you elaborate on "interface" requirements? (e.g., file transfer, direct integration) Can you provide a list of accounting systems that Customers use?
	The primary integration is CORE referenced in Section 4.1.4.7. Offeror should review the Application Workbook Custom Applications worksheet for other interfaces.

	58
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	2.1.3.6
	Does SIPA require any migration of existing Resident payment methods and/or subscriptions?
	Due to PCI compliance and tokenization, there is not expected to be a migration from existing systems. Users will set up payment methods and subscriptions in the Successful Offeror's platform.

	59
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	2.2.1.10
	Can you clarify what DPA systems and data feeds are required for integration?
	See response to Question #13. Additional data will be provided in the Data Room when made available to SIPA.

	60
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	2.5.1.7
	Your POS requirements reference 'smart card'. There are a number of ways this can be interpreted. Can you please clarify what is being referred to?
	The smart card referenced in Section 2.2.1.5.3 refers to EMV chip cards that can be processed with a chip or contactless.

	61
	Exhibit 2.1.2 Payment Services SOW
	2.4.1.2
	Can you define what support services are part of Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3?
	Please review definitions for Level 1 Support, Level 2 Support, and Level 3 Support in Exhibit 1.1 Definitions.

	62
	Exhibit 2.1.3 Portal Services SOW
	4.1.12 Colorado.gov URL Websites
	What is the total monthly or annual submissions of online web form on AppEngine?
	The volumes currently available are included in the Annual Report in the data room. Additional detail may be available at a future date.

	63
	Other (Not one of the above)
	Measurement and Reporting
	What repositories and tools are in place?
	See response to Question #45.
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